
Page #

4

A.
1) 6

B.
1) 13

C.
1) 24

2) 34

6. Old Business.

7. New Business.

8. Other New Business.

Concord Heights Phase III Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat - A plat to 
create twenty (20) residential lots from an existing 18.68-acre parcel on Old 
Manchester Highway and Concord Road.
Applicant: Mr. Jeff Bowen (Owner)

Subdivision Plat (Public Hearing)

None

Zoning Map Amendments (Public Hearings)
Zoning Map Amendment #237 - A request to rezone three parcels addressed as 
713, 715, and 717 East Lincoln Street from General Commercial District (C-2) 
to High-Density Residential District (R-3).
Applicant: Ira A. Howard (Owner)

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING AGENDA

Monday, August 17, 2020 - 4:30 PM
1. Call to order by Chairman Chad Grimes.

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

Municipal Building, 201 West Grundy Street, 2nd Floor, Board Room

Due To The COVID-19 Emergency, The Planning Commission Will Conduct Its Essential Business By 
Electronic Means Rather Than Being Required To Gather A Quorum Of The Members Physically Present In 
The Same Location Because It Is Necessary To Protect The Health, Safety, And Welfare Of Tennesseans. 
This meeting is in compliance with the Governor’s Executive Orders No. 51, which remains in effect until 
11:59 p.m. on August 29, 2020.

"It has been determined that meeting electronically is necessary to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare in light of the coronavirus. A recording of this 
meeting will be made available to the public online."

Zoning Map Amendment #238 - A request to rezone a 2.03 acre parcel at the Y-
intersection of Riley Creek Road and Ovoca Road from Low-Density Residential 
District (R-1) to Neighborhood Commercial District (C-3).
Applicant: Ira A. Howard (Owner)

Site Plan (Public Hearing)
Real Wood Products Site Plan - A site plan for a proposed new open building 
with an area of approximately 5,700 square feet at 152 Freeman Street.  
Applicant: Kenny Sadler, P.E. for Heritage Barrel

4. Read and approve the minutes of the meeting on July 20 2020.

2. Determination of a quorum.

5. Reports of Officers and Staff.
None



10. Adjourn. 
9. Next Meeting: Monday, September 21, 2020

None



Sudoku

Last Week’s Answers

7 1 9 3 2 4 8 6 5
3 8 4 9 5 6 1 2 7
5 6 2 1 8 7 4 3 9
8 3 7 5 6 1 2 9 4
2 5 6 8 4 9 3 7 1
9 4 1 2 7 3 6 5 8

1 9 8 7 3 2 5 4 6
6 2 5 4 9 8 7 1 3
4 7 3 6 1 5 9 8 2

1 2
3 4 5

5 6 1 7 8
7 5 3 4

8 1 9 6
6 4 9 2

1 2 8 9 5
4 3 1

6 9

Public Notice

Public Notice
Regular Meeting to be held Electronically;

Physical Access Restricted

NOW HIRING

Apply at:

NOW HIRING

Apply at:

NOTICE TO 

CREDITORS

Estate of
Mildred

Johnson
Late of Coffee 

County,
 Tennessee

Notice is hereby 
given that on the 
30th day of July, 
2020 Letters of Tes-
tamentary (or of Ad-
ministration as the 
case may be) in re-
spect of the Estate of 
Mildred Johnson 
who died on May 30, 
2020 issued to the 
undersigned by the 
Chancery Court of 
Coffee County, Ten-
nessee. All persons, 
resident and non-
resident,  having 
claims, matured or 
unmatured, against 
the estate are re-
quired to file the 
same with the clerk 
of the above named 
court on or before 
the earlier of the 
dates prescribed in 
(1) or (2) otherwise 
their claims will be 
forever barred:

(1)   (A) Four (4) 
months from the 
date of the first publi-
cation (or posting, as 
the case may be) of 
this notice if the 
creditor received an 
actual copy of this 
notice to creditors at 
least sixty (60) days 
before the date that 
is four (4) months 
from the date of the 
first publication (or 
posting); or

(B) Sixty (60) days 
from the date the 
creditor received an 
actual copy of the 
notice to creditors if 
the creditor received 
the copy of the no-
tice less than sixty 
(60) days prior to the 
date that is four (4) 
months from the 
date of first publica-
tion (or posting) as 
described in (1)(A); 
or

(2) Twelve (12) 
months from the 
decedent’s date of 
death.

This 30th day of 
July, 2020

(Signed)
Marilyn L. Carroll
Co-Personal
Representative

Barbara Ann Sullivan
Co-Personal
Representative

S t e p h e n  M . 
Worsham
Attorney for Estate

Sheila B. Proffitt,
Clerk & Master

All residential real estate 
advertised herein is subject 
to the Federal Fair Housing 
Act and applicable state 
and local laws. The Fair 
Housing Act makes it illegal 
to advertise “any prefer-
ence, limitation, discrimina-
tion because of race, color, 
religion, sex, handicap, fa-
milial status, or national ori-
gin, or intention to make 
any such preference, limita-
tion or discrimination.”

We will not knowingly ac-
cept any advertising for res-
idential real estate that ap-
pears to or violate federal 
and/or state and local law.

CLASSIFIED
ERROR

RESPONSIBILITY
We take great care to avoid 
typographical errors. How-
ever, in the event of an er-
ror, we are responsible only 
for the first incorrect inser-
tion of an ad. We do not 
assume any responsibility, 
for any reason, for an error 
in an ad beyond the cost of 
the ad itself. Management 
reserves the right to reject, 
revise  & properly classify 
all advertisements. Ad posi-
tion has no bearing on the 
results you receive and 
cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE TO 
CREDITORS

Estate of
Phillip Wayne 

Ballinger
Late of Coffee 

County,
 Tennessee

Notice is hereby 
given that on the 
29th day of July, 
2020 Letters of Tes-

tamentary (or of Ad-
ministration as the 
case may be) in re-
spect of the Estate of 
Phillip Wayne Bal-
linger who died on 
June 27, 2020 is-
sued to the under-
signed by the Chan-
cery Court of Coffee 
County, Tennessee. 
All persons, resident 
and nonresident, 
having claims, ma-
tured or unmatured, 
against the estate 
are required to file 
the same with the 
clerk of the above 
named court on or 
before the earlier of 
the dates prescribed 
in (1) or (2) other-
wise their claims will 
be forever barred:

(1)   (A) Four (4) 
months from the 
date of the first publi-
cation (or posting, as 
the case may be) of 
this notice if the 
creditor received an 
actual copy of this 
notice to creditors at 
least sixty (60) days 
before the date that 
is four (4) months 
from the date of the 
first publication (or 
posting); or

(B) Sixty (60) days 
from the date the 
creditor received an 
actual copy of the 
notice to creditors if 
the creditor received 
the copy of the no-
tice less than sixty 
(60) days prior to the 
date that is four (4) 
months from the 
date of first publica-

tion (or posting) as 
described in (1)(A); 
or

(2) Twelve (12) 
months from the 
decedent’s date of 
death.

This 24th day of 
July, 2020

(Signed)
Daniel Ballinger
Personal
Representative

W. Andrew Bobo
Attorney

Sheila B. Proffitt,
Clerk & Master

Huge 3 Family 
Garage/Yard sale. Fri Aug 

7 8-4, Sat Aug 8th 8-3. 
Rain or shine! Furniture, 

home decor, crafts, black-
smith tools, two seat bicy-

cle, Schwinn & Murray bicy-
cles, tires, small freezer, 
baby items/clothes, dog 
stuff, jewelry, sheep/goat 

items, lots more...619 N Di-
agonal St. Decherd

HUGE MOVING ESTATE 
SALE

77 SAGE COURT
MANCHESTER

THURSDAY FRIDAY AND 
SATURDAY AUG 6TH 

4PM-7PM
 7TH AND 8TH 9AM-1PM

TVS FURNITURE, TOOLS, 
LOTS OF KITCHEN 

ITEMS, HOLIDAY DECOR, 
GARAGE FULL OF MISC!

BY TRI-STAR ESTATE 
SALES

 Auctions

GET THE WORD OUT 
about your next auction! 
Save Time & $$$. One Call 
For All. Your ad can appear 
in this newspaper + 101 
other TN newspapers. For 
more info, contact this 
newspaper’s classified 
dept. or call 931-624-8916. 
(TnScan)

Cable / Satellite TV

DISH Network. $59.99 for 
190 Channels! Blazing Fast 
Internet, $19.99/mo. (where 
available.) Switch & Get a 
FREE $100 Visa Gift Card. 
FREE Voice Remote. 

FREE HD DVR. FREE 
Streaming on ALL Devices. 
Call today! 1-844-274-6074 
(TnScan)

DIRECTV - Switch and 
Save! $49.99/month. Se-
lect All-Included Package. 
155 Channels. 1000s of 
Shows/Movies On De-
mand. FREE Genie HD 
DVR Upgrade. Premium 
movie channels, FREE for 
3  m o s !  C a l l 
1-844-230-4803 (TnScan)

Farm Equipment

LEASE YOUR FARM FOR 
HUNTING Prepaid annual 
lease payments that grow 
$5M liability insurance.  We 
handle everything for you.  
Base Camp Leasing  
1 - 8 6 6 - 3 0 9 - 1 5 0 7 
www.basecampleasing.com 
Promo Code: 316 
(TnScan)

GOOD LORD
PROVIDING,  at J&J

Organic Berry Farm this 
year 2020. Only taking 

orders-due to the worldly  
virus. No Customer

Picking. 931-455-6855

For Your
Convenience
We Accept

for ALL PURCHASES in-
cluding: Classified, Ad-
vertising, Book Sales, 
Printing & Subscriptions.

6A — The News, Wednesday, August 5, 2020 

wbrooks
Rectangle

wbrooks
Text Box



TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

July 20th,  2020 

 

The Tullahoma Municipal Regional Planning Commission met in a Virtual Session Monday, July 20th, 2020 at 

4:30 pm by electronic webinar. Due to the COVID-19 emergency, this meeting is following the Governor’s 

Executive Order No. 51, which remains in effect until 11:59 p.m. on August 29th, 2020.  

 

1. Call to Order: Chairman Chad Grimes called the meeting to order and welcomed commissioners, staff, 

and guests. 
 

2. Determination of a Quorum: Mr. Chad Grimes, Mr. Larry Crabtree, Mr. Ray Knowis, Mr. Bill Comer, 

Mr. Paul Schwer, Ms. Shelley Smith and Ms. Rupa Blackwell were present. Seven (7) members were 

present. Other City and Staff Representatives present: City Administrator and Interim Planning Director 

Ms. Jennifer Moody, City Engineer Mr. Scot St. John, and Ms. Angela Morales Recording Secretary.  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

 

4. Minutes: On a motion made by Mr. Ray Knowis, seconded by Ms. Rupa Blackwell, the minutes of the 

June 15th, 2020 meeting were approved as presented. Motion passed 7-0. 

 

5. Reports of Officers and Staff – None 

 

6. Old Business: 
 

A. Zoning Amendment (Public Hearing) 

1. Zoning Map Amendment 236 – 1800 E Lincoln Street  

 The applicant is requesting to rezone a 28.4-acre parcel located at 1800 E. Lincoln Street 

(Coffee Co. Tax Map: 124K , Group E, Parcel: 006.00) from medium density residential 

district (R-2) to high density residential district (R-3).  

 (Applicant(s): Flavil Hatcher, Cindy Shepard, and Charna Laughmiller (Heirs/Owners). 

 STAFF COMMENTS: Staff gives an unfavorable recommendation to the Board of Mayor 

& Alderman. 

 PUBLIC COMMENTS: The following public comments were made: 

• Tammy Luna – 2003 E. Lincoln St. – via email: opposed due to overcrowding of 

schools, too many apartments in the area already, traffic and decrease in property 

values. 

• Freddy Whaley – 815 E Lincoln – via phone call: opposed due to flooding, school 

overcrowding and states the city has enough public housing already. 

• Rick Shepard – (on behalf of applicant, Cindy Shepard) – in favor because rezoning 

could generate tax revenue for City, says property is an eyesore that could be 

improved, and he believes any concern with flooding would likely be addressed by 

engineers and City planners. Also states the property is for sale for $200,000 and 

that the property owners on Ham St could buy sections behind their own property 

if they chose to. 

• Celina Trussell – 202 Ham St – opposed due to potential increase in flooding and 

does not want this to add to crime that is already a problem in the area. Concerned 

with increase in vehicle and pedestrian traffic as it relates to safety & accidents, 

concerned with over population of schools, and states the wooded area is not an 

eyesore, but is a habitat to many animals that they enjoy seeing.  

• William Trussell – 202 Ham St – yields 2 minutes to Celina Trussell 

• Joy Morgan – 127 Ham St – yields 2 minutes to Celina Trussell 

• Max Jarrell – 204 Ham St – yields 2 minutes to Celina Trussell 

• Roni Jarrell – 204 Ham St – yields 2 minutes to Celina Trussell 



• Terry Beauregard – 118 Ham St – opposed due to concerns with crime, drugs, 

criminals and problems that public housing brings. 

• Matt Crawford – 211 Ham St – opposed stating that his property already floods by 

4’ and developing will add to the flooding they’re already having. 

• Dwayne Stocky – 210 Ham St – opposed due to a potential increase in crime and 

flooding. Also concerned with a decrease in property value and shares the same 

concerns as stated by Ms. Trussell. 

A motion to approve an unfavorable recommendation for the rezoning of 1800 E Lincoln 

St from R-2 medium density residential to R-3 high density residential was made by Mr. 

Ray Knows seconded by Ms. Rupa Blackwell. Motion passed 7-0. 

 

7. New Business: 
 

A. Zoning Text Amendment (Public Hearing) 

1. FCZTA 6—A proposed text amendment to the Franklin County Zoning Resolution. 

(Applicant(s): Steve Macon, President of Broadview Volunteer Fire Department).  

The Franklin County Planning Commission is purposing a text amendment to the Franklin 

County Zoning Resolution Article IV, General Provisions, Section 10.1 to add the 

following subsection: “10.1(14) On site signs not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet are 

allowed for all Fire Departments in all zoned districts.” 

STAFF COMMENTS: Staff recommends approval of this request. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: There were no public comments. 

A motion to approve was made by Ms. Rupa Blackwell seconded by Mr. Larry Crabtree. 

Motion passed 7-0.        

 

8. Other New Business:  
  

A. Bonds  

1. Approve a Performance Bond Amount for The Woodlands Phase I (Map: 109, Parcel: 

053.3) in the amount of $38,000 for improvements including sidewalks, erosion and 

sediment controls, and construction of ingress/egress for phase I, including 4 lots along 

Riley Creek Road. 

STAFF COMMENTS: The commission is recommended to approve and establish the 

bond amount. 

A motion to approve was made by Mr. Larry Crabtree seconded by Mr. Bill Comer. 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

9. Next Meeting: Monday, August 17th, 2020 
 

10. Adjourn  

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
_________________________________________ 
Ms. Angela Morales, Recording Secretary 

 

 
_________________________________________ 
Ms. Jennifer Moody, Interim Planning Commission Secretary 



 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda No.: 7.A.1 
 

Project Title: Concord Heights Phase III Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
 

Staff: Jennifer Moody, Interim Planning Director 
 

Applicant: Mr. Jeff Bowen, 1278 Riddle Road, Shelbyville, TN 
 
Request: For the Planning Commission to approve a subdivision preliminary 

plat for recording. The purpose of the preliminary plat is to divide 
18.68 acres into twenty (20) proposed residential lots. 

 
Zoning: RS-1 (Coffee County Low-Density Residential) 

 
Property Size: 18.68 acres 

 
Location: On the west side of New Manchester Highway and the Caney Fork and Western 

Railroad, south of Concord Road and Jesse Court in Tullahoma’s Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB) 

 
Tax Map and 
Parcel Numbers: Coffee County: Map 111, Parcel 001.00 

 
Background Summary: 
The applicant has indicated that the proposed subdivision will create twenty (20) residential lots for 
single-family dwellings.   Each of the proposed lots is generally 0.80 acres (or +/-35,000 square feet) in 
size. The property is in the Low-Density Residential (RS-1) zoning district of Coffee County in 
Tullahoma’s Urban Growth Boundary.  The property’s current use is agricultural.    

 
 

Current property Information 

Land Use: Undeveloped 

Site Features: Vacant Lot 

Flood Areas The property is not located in a special flood hazard area 

Vehicle Access Old Manchester Highway (Urban Collector) and Concord Road (Minor Street) 
 
 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
 Zoning: Land Use: 

North: Low-Density Residential (RS-1) Single-family residential 

South: Low-Density Residential (RS-1) Single-family residential 



 

East: Low-Density Residential (RS-1) Single-family residential 

West: Low-Density Residential (RS-1) Single-family residential 

 
 

Zoning District Summary 

 
Zoning District Intent: 

The Low-Density Residential District (RS-1) – These districts are 
designed to provide suitable areas for residential development consisting 
of single-family dwellings and other structures that are accessory to that 
within areas that are suburban in nature. 

 
Permissible Uses: 

Single-family dwellings, parks, schools, utility infrastructure, 
private recreational facilities, and plant nurseries 

  
Water and Sewer 
Service: 

 
TUA will provide public water and each individual lot will have 
individual septic service. 

Lot and/ or 
Density 
Requirements: 

 
Minimum Lot Area with public water: 30,000 square feet  
Minimum Lot Area with public water and fire flow: 20,000 square feet  
Maximum Lot Width without sewer: 125 feet 

Setback 
Requirements: 

Front Yard Setback: 25 feet from interior street right-of-ways  

Rear Yard Setback: 25 feet from the rear lot line  

Side Yard Setback: 25 feet from side lot lines 
 
 

Development Advisory Committee Review: 

Public Works: No comments 

City Engineer: Not required, but prefer detention areas to be placed in “Common 
Area” to be owned and maintained  by the Homeowners 
Association; submit construction plans for review for concurrence 
with the Tullahoma Subdivision Regulations 

Economic Development No comments 

Parks and Recreation: No comments 

Fire Department: No comments 

Administration: No comments 

Building Official: No comments 

ERPUD: No comments 

TUA Water & Sewer: Water service by TUA; plans for septic service must be submitted 
and approved by TDEC 

TUA Electric: This area is served by Duck River Electric 



 

Planning Consideration(s): 
The following general considerations, planning concepts, and other facts should be considered 
in the review of this application: 

 
1. The total area of the subdivision site is 18.68 acres with lot sizes of +/- 0.80 acres. 
2. Lots will be served by a new internal street. 
3. Public Water is available from Tullahoma Utilities Authority. 
4. As proposed, individual septic tanks for each lot would supply septic service; 

TDEC approval is required. 
5. A detention and drainage areas are being proposed on individual lots rather than 

in dedicated common space areas. 
6. Construction plans will need to be reviewed and approved for concurrence with 

the Tullahoma Subdivision Regulations. 
 

Preliminary Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat for the following: 

1. The proposed subdivision meets all of the development standards required by 
Coffee County Zoning, including minimum lot size, minimum lot width, and the 
minimum setbacks. 

2. The subdivision meets all the requirements of the Subdivision Regulations. The lots 
will have frontage along a public road. 

Attachments: 
      Subdivision Application 

Proposed plat 
      Zoning Map 
      Aerial Map 







Concord Heights Phase III Major Subdivision 

Preliminary Plat 

 Property Map  Coffee County/UGB 



Concord Heights Phase III Major Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat 

 Aerial Property Map 



 

 

 

Staff Report 
 
Agenda No.:        7.B.1 
 
Project Title:       Dollar General Retail Store Site Plan 
 
Staff:                    Jennifer Moody, Interim Planning Director 
 
Applicant:           Mr. Kenny Sadler, P.E., 4866 Woodbury Hwy, Manchester, TN 37388 
 
Request:              For the Planning Commission to approve a site plan for a commercial building.             
 
Zoning:               I-2 (Heavy Industrial District) 
 
Building Size:     5,760 square feet 
 
Property Size:     +/-54,218 square feet (1.24 acres)           
 
Location:            152 Freeman Street, Tullahoma, TN 
 
Tax Map, Group,  
and Parcel Numbers:  Coffee County Map 124E  Group J, Parcel 003.00 
 
Background Summary: 
The applicant is requesting approval of a site plan. The applicant has indicated that the site plan is 
for a proposed 5,760 square foot accessory building for covered, open-sided storage of oak 
barrels. Due to the size of the proposed accessory building and the owners’ future intentions for 
additional structures, the applicant has submitted a landscaping plan with the site plan that will 
meet the current landscaping standards for I-2 heavy industrial districts.   
 
Current property Information 

Land Use: Manufacturing, Recycling, Processing and Assembly 

Site Features: 

The site has an existing open, iron building (1,057 sq. ft.), an accessory office 
building with picnic shed, and two existing metal sheds with a gravel parking 
area.  The majority of the site is existing gravel with areas for pallet storage 
and some grass area. The driveway is on Freeman Street.  

Flood Areas The property is not located in a special flood hazard area 

Vehicle Access Freeman St (Minor Street)  

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use 

  Zoning: I-2 Heavy Industrial 
Land Use: Manufacturing, Recycling, 
Processing and Assembly 

North: High-Density Residential (R-3) Multi-family residential dwellings 

South: 
Restricted Industrial and 
Warehousing District (I-1) 

Railroad 

East: Medium-Density Residential (R-3) Single-family residential and office 

West: 
General Commercial (C-2) and 
Medium-Density Residential (R-2) 
 

Former Concrete Plant and Single-Family and 
Two-Family Residential Dwellings 

 
 
Zoning District Summary 

Zoning District Intent: The I-2 district is for activities which, like commercial land uses, can 
be considered very intensive. Use involving manufacturing or 
processing of various materials into finished products are included in 
this category.  These areas have been located and developed to take 
advantage of good access, whether by rail, major thoroughfare or air. 

Permissible Uses: Any use permitted in the I-1 District, provided, however, that no 
residential use, except sleeping facilities required by caretakers or night 
watchmen employed on the premises shall be permitted in an I-2, 
Heavy Industrial District. 
Any of the following uses. 

1. Lumber and wood products manufacturing. 
2. Lots or yards for scrap or salvage operations or for 

processing, storage, display or sales of any scrap or 
salvage materials. 

3. Automobile wrecking, salvage, and junk yards. 
4. Meat products manufacturing. 
5. Dyeing and finishing of textiles. 
6. Tanning. 
7. Chemicals and allied products manufacturing. 
8. Petroleum and refining and related industries. 
9. Rubber and miscellaneous plastic products 

manufacturing. 
10. Primary metal industries. 



 

 

 

 11. Mining activities and related industries. 
12. Concrete or cement products manufacturing. 
13. Buildings, structures, and uses accessory and customarily 

incidental to any of the above uses. 
14. Off-premise advertising signs as related to Article VII. 
15. In general those uses which may be obnoxious or 

offensive by reason of emission of odor, dust, smoke, 
gas, noise, vibration, and the like and not allowed in any 
other district, provided, however, that any use not 
specified herein shall be approved by the Board of 
Zoning Appeals. 

16. Buildings, structures, and uses accessory and customarily 
incidental to any of the above uses. 

Water and Sewer 
Service: 

Public water and sewer are available. 

Lot and/ or Density 
Requirements: 

Minimum Lot Area: None  
Minimum Lot Width: None 
Maximum Impervious Lot Coverage(%): 75% 

 Height Restrictions: Maximum Building Height: 50 feet 

Off-Street Parking 
Requirements: 

 Minimum Number of Parking Space:  
 Manufacturing, Recycling, Processing and Assembly:  
1 space per 1,500 square feet of gross floor area 

Setback Requirements: Front Setback: 50 feet from the right-of-way       
Rear Setback: 25 feet from the right-of-way       
Side Setbacks: 15 feet from the side lot line and the side and/ or rear 
setback(s) in any industrial (I) zoning district shall be fifty (50) feet 
when abutting a residential ( R ) zoned lot. 

 
  Development Committee: 

Building Official: No comments 

Public Works: A pre-construction meeting with Public Works is required 

Engineering: No comments 

Parks and Recreation: Plan meets landscaping requirements 

Fire Department: No comments 

City Administration No paved concrete or asphalt parking areas are required at this time; 
but future additional new structures or activities that generate 
additional employees to the site may require the site to provide paved 
surfaces for off-street parking of employees 

TAEDC: No comments 

ERPUD: No comments 



 

 

 

TUA Water & Sewer: No comments 

TUA Electric: No comments 
 

Comprehensive Development Plan Consideration(s): 
The land use map indicates the future use of this property as commercial.  
 
Planning Consideration(s): 
The following general considerations, planning concepts, and other facts should be considered in 
the review of this application: 
1. The applicant is proposing a 5,760 square foot open, covered accessory building for storage 

of oak barrels.  
2. The heights of the proposed building will be 20 feet, which is less than the maximum 

building height of 50 feet. 
3. No new parking areas or spaces will be required as a result of this additional accessory 

building. 
4. The proposed development meets the minimum building setbacks in the I-2 district.  
5. The proposed landscaping meets the standards in Section 505 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
6. The site will be accessible from Freeman Street.   
 
Preliminary Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the site plan for the following: 
1. The principal use of the lot remains unchanged. 
2. The proposed building meets the following requirements: maximum building height, the 

landscaping requirements, maximum lot coverage, and the minimum setbacks. 
 
  

Attachments: 
Application 
Site and Landscaping Plan 
Aerial Map 
Flood Map 
Zoning Map 

 
 











152 Freeman Street  
Aerial Property Map 



152 Freeman Street  
Flood Map 

● 152 



152 Freeman Street  
Zoning Map 

● 152 



 

 

 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda No.: 7.C.1 

Project Title: Zoning Map Amendment #237 

Staff: Jennifer Moody, Interim Planning Director 

Applicants: I.A. Howard 

 

Property Size: +/- 0.6 acres (total of three parcels) 

Current Zoning: General Commercial District (C-2) 

Proposed Zoning: High-Density Residential (R-3) 

Location: 713, 715, and 717 East Lincoln Street 
  

Tax Map: Coffee County: 124K, Group F, Parcel Numbers: 019.00, 020.00, and 020.01 
 

Background Summary: 
The subject properties are contiguous, vacant parcels addressed as 713, 715, and 717 E. Lincoln Street, on the 
north side of the E. Lincoln Street (across from Damron’s Restaurant) and are mid-block properties between 
Birch Alley and N. College St.  Each lot appears to be approximately 0.2 acres with between 50’-60’ of 
frontage on E. Lincoln St and 150’ in depth.  At this size, each lot is equal to the minimum lot size of 7,500 
square feet for the R-3 Residential District.  General Commercial District (C-2) does not have a minimum lot 
size.  All lots have access to an alley that runs along the rear of the property. 
 
The applicant is requesting rezoning to support construction of a single-family residential dwelling on each 
lot with the driveway access being served off the alley.  The construction style would be “shotgun-style” with 
the structure being narrow and running deep, following the shape of the lot.  The applicant indicated that the 
proposed homes could be one- or two-stories in height. 
 
The three parcels are approximately 0.6 acres in total and are currently undeveloped, vacant land.  The 
property is presently zoned C-2 (General Commercial).  The general character of this area is mixed-use with 
single-family residences and some multi-family mixed with general commercial uses.  The land use plan 
indicates commercial district for all lots fronting E. Lincoln Street in this area, while the existing uses are 
primarily residential in character. 
 

Current property Information 

Land Use: Agricultural 

Site Features: Vacant 

Water & Sewer Public water and sewer is available and required for R-3 

Flood Areas The site is not located in a special flood hazard area. 

Vehicle Access E. Lincoln Street (Urban Collector Street) 

 
 



 

 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

  Zoning: Land Use: 

North: Medium-density Residential (R-2) Single-family and Two-family dwellings 

South: General Commercial (C-2) Restaurant, Office, Automotive Service 

East: General Commercial (C-2) 
Mixed-Uses with Single-family dwellings 
(Residential) and Grocery (Commercial) 

West: 
General Commercial (C-2) and  
High-density Residential (R-3) 

Single-family dwellings 

 
 

Zoning District Summary (Existing/ Proposed): 

  
Existing Zoning: General 
Commercial (C-2) 

Proposed Zoning: High-Density 
Residential (R-3) 

Zoning District Intent: 

The C-2 district is for personal and 
business services and general retail 
business. Regulations are designed to 
guide future change so as to 
discourage formation of future 
blighted commercial areas, to 
preserve the carrying capacity of the 
community's collector and arterial 
street system, and to provide for 
adequate off-street parking and 
loading. 

The R-3 district is intended to promote 
and encourage the establishment and 
maintenance of a suitable environment 
for urban residence in areas appropriate 
by location and character for occupancy 
by high-density, multiple-family 
dwellings.  

Permissible Uses: 

1. Any uses permitted in C-1 District 1. Single-family dwellings 

2. Automotive sales 2. Two-family dwellings 
3. Automotive motor fuel dispensing 
facilities 

3. Multifamily dwellings 

4. Automotive self-service motor fuel 
dispensing facilities 

4. Townhouses 

5. Contractors business offices 5. Boarding Houses 

 6. Commercial printing and 
publishing 

6. Condominiums 

 7. Commercial schools 7. Congregate residences 

 8. Community Commercial centers 8. Accessory buildings 

 9. Convenience Commercial centers 9. Temporary buildings 

10. Cultural Institutions  

11.Fast Food Restaurant  

12. Fitness Centers  

13. Group Care Facilities  

14. Hospitals  

15.Hotels and Motels  



 

 

 

16. Indoor Recreation  

17. Light Commercial  

18. Minor Automotive Repair  

19. Mortuary and Funeral Homes  

20. Neighborhood Commercial 
centers 

 

Continued from 
previous page: 

Existing Zoning: General 
Commercial (C-2) 

Proposed Zoning: High-Density 
Residential (R-3) 

Permissible Uses: 

21.Outdoor Recreation  

22.Rehabilitiation Centers  

23. Religious, Cultural and Fraternal 
Activities 

 

24. Theaters  

Uses permitted upon 
review 

1. Regional Commercial Centers 1. Churches  

2. Schools (private and 
public)(primary and 
secondary) 

2. K-12 Schools, and colleges, public 
and private 

3. Parks, playgrounds & ball fields. 

 4. Country Clubs/ Golf Courses  

 5. Police & Fire Stations 

 6. Public& Governmental Services 
 7. Public Libraries 
 8. Public Parking Lots 

 9. Temporary Uses 

Water and Sewer 
Service: 

Public water & sewer are not 
required. 

Public water and sewer are required. 

 
 

Zoning District Summary (Existing/ Proposed): 

Lot and/ or Density 
Requirements: 

General Commercial (C-2)  Single-family dwelling in R-3: 

Minimum Lot Area: None  Minimum Lot Area: 7,500 sq. ft.  

Minimum Lot Width: None  Minimum Lot Width: 50 ft.  

Maximum Impervious Lot 
Coverage(%): 80 

Maximum Impervious Lot Coverage 
(%): 25 

 
Two-family dwellings and Townhomes 
in R-3 

 
Minimum Lot Area: 7,500 square feet 
per unit  

 Minimum Lot Width: 125 feet  

  
Maximum Impervious Lot Coverage 
(%): 30 

Multifamily dwellings in R-3 



 

 

 

Minimum Lot Area: 3,000 square feet 
per unit  

Minimum Lot Width: 150 feet  

Maximum Impervious Lot Coverage 
(%): 35 

 Height Restrictions: Maximum Building Height: 35 ft. Maximum Building Height: 50 ft. 

Off-Street Parking 
Requirements: 

Minimum Number of Parking 
Space:  

 Minimum Number of Parking Space:  

Varies based upon Use 

Single-family dwelling: 2 per dwelling 

Two-family dwelling/ Townhome:       
2 per unit 

Multifamily dwelling: 1.5 per unit 

Setback Requirements: 

Front Yard Setback: 
 

Single-family dwelling  
35 feet from the street right-of-way 
 

Front: 35 ft. 

Rear Yard Setback: Side: 5 ft. 
10 feet from side lot lines Rear: 25 ft. 

 Two-family dwelling/ Townhomes 

Side Yard Setback: Front: 35 ft. 

10 feet from side lot lines Side: 10 ft. 

 Rear: 25 ft. 

 
Multifamily dwelling 

 
Front: 50 ft. 

 
Side: 20 ft. 

  Rear: 35 ft. 

 
 

Comprehensive Development Plan Consideration(s): 
The land use map indicates the preferable use of this property as General Commercial.  
 
Planning Consideration(s): 
The following general factors, planning concepts, and other facts should be considered in the 
review of this application: 
1. In consideration of the appropriate zoning classification for these lots, it is notable that the size 

of the lots are below allowable lot sizes for consideration of re-zoning to low-density (R-1) and 
medium-density (R-2) residential districts.  The lot sizes would meet minimum area 
requirements for the High-Density residential district (R-3); however, it is unlikely that 
anything other than single-family dwellings could meet the setback requirements without a 
revised plat to combine lots. 

2. The Zoning Ordinance defines one mixed-use district, the Neighborhood Commercial District 
(C-3); however, the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map have not yet been updated to 
identify areas for this zoning district. 

3. This is a small-scale amendment request totaling 0.6 acres in property.  Each lot has 
approximately 50 feet of frontage along East Lincoln Street and is approximately 150’ deep 
with an alley running along the rear property lines.   

4. The subject property is located immediately across from commercial uses and immediately next 
to residential uses.  The immediate area consists of a mixture of uses. 

5. The parcel meets all lot (minimum size and width) standards for single-family development in 
the R-3 District.   



 

 

 

 
Preliminary Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends discussion of the request and approval for the following: 
1. The proposed amendment is small-scale and while it is inconsistent with the adopted land use plan, 

which designates the area for general commercial use, the request is consistent with the general 
character of the existing neighborhood and the current use of the contiguous parcels to the north, 
east, and west. 

2. A need for more housing and infill residential developments has often been discussed by members 
of the Planning Commission. 

3. High-density residential zoning is one parcel removed from the subject lots; specifically, it is one 
parcel removed to the west.  The neighboring property currently zoned C-2 was not able to be 
directly reached to determine whether they would like to be considered for inclusion in the rezoning 
request.  If that parcel were included, then the rezoning application would be consistent with the 
current land use map.   
  

Attachments: 
Application  
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Land Use Map 

 
 







Rezoning Requested for 713, 715, 717 E. Lincoln St  

Property Map 



Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA) #237 
713, 715, 717 E. Lincoln Street  

    713 
  715 

       717 



Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA) #237 
713, 715, 717 E. Lincoln Street  

Land Use Map 



 

 

 

 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda No.: 7.C.2 

Project Title: Zoning Map Amendment #238 

Staff: Jennifer Moody, Interim Planning Director 

Applicants: I.A. Howard (Owner) 

 

Property Size: +/- 2.03 acres 

Current Zoning: Low-Density Residential (R-1) 

Proposed Zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (C-3) 

Location: Ovoca Road 
  

Tax Map: Coffee County Map: 109, Parcel Number: 053.12 
 

Background Summary: 
The subject property is located at the point of the Y-intersection of Ovoca Road and Riley Creek Roady, near the 
Fairways Subdivision.   The property is approximately 2 acres and is currently undeveloped, vacant land.  The property is 
presently zoned R-1 (Low-Density Residential), which allows for single-family residential dwellings.   
 
The applicant requests consideration of the property for use as small scale commercial development to serve the 
neighborhood and requests rezoning the property to C-3 (Neighborhood Commercial District) to accommodate their 
vision for future development.  The City’s Future Land Use Plan indicates Residential Low-Density Single-family 
development. The surrounding areas are primarily low-density single-family residential with an area of medium-density 
residential district to the southwest. 
  

Current property Information 

Land Use: Agricultural 

Site Features: Vacant 

Water & Sewer Public water and sewer is available 

Flood Areas The site is not located in a special flood hazard area. 

Vehicle Access Ovoca Rd (Urban Minor Arterial) 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 

  Zoning: Land Use: 

North: Low-density Residential (R-1) Single-family dwellings 

South: 
Low-density Residential (R-1) and 
Medium-density Residential (R-2) 

Single-family dwellings 

East: Low-density Residential (R-1) Single-family dwellings 

West: Low-density Residential (R-1) Single-family dwellings and Agricultural use 

 
 

Zoning District Summary (Existing/ Proposed): 

  Existing Zoning: Low-Density 
Residential (R-1) 

Proposed Zoning: High-Density 
Residential (C-3) 

Zoning District Intent: 

The R-1district is established to 
provide for low-density residential 
development. 

The C-3 district is intended to provide a 
limited range of commercial uses 
concerned with retail trade and 
consumer services and designed to be 
located near residential areas. Permitted 
uses are those that meet the frequent and 
regular needs of individuals and 
accommodate both vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic. Buildings built to 
complement pedestrian scale activities. 
Single and multiple-family dwellings are 
also permitted. 

Permissible Uses: 

1. Single-family dwellings 1. Single-family dwellings 

2. Accessory buildings 2. Two-family dwellings 

3. Temporary buildings 3. Townhomes and Townhouses 

 4. Multifamily dwellings 
 5. Accessory buildings and uses 

customarily incidental to any 
permissible use 

 6. Bed and Breakfasts 

 7. Boarding Houses 

 8. Business and Financial Services 

 9. Commercial retail sales and services 

 10. Community Centers 

 11. Congregate Residences 



 

 

 

 
Existing Zoning: Low-Density 
Residential (R-1) 

Proposed Zoning: High-Density 
Residential (C-3) 

Permissible Uses:  

12. Convenience store with gasoline 
pumps 
13. Dry Cleaning pick-up (no dry 
cleaning allowed) 

14. Family and Group Daycares 

15. Gyms and Fitness Centers 

16. Funeral Homes 

17. Government offices and services 

18. Laundromats 

19. Libraries 

20. Medical Offices, Healthcare, and 
Medical Services 

21. Places of Worship 

22. Public Utility Station and Public 
Services 
23. Restaurants; eating and drinking 
establishments 
24. Schools (private and public) 
(primary and secondary) 

Uses permitted upon 
review 

1. Churches  1. Home Occupations 

2. K-12 Schools, and colleges, public 
and private 

2.Parking Lots (Principal Use) 

3. Parks, playgrounds & ball fields. 
3. Microbrewery, Micro-distillery, and 
Micro-winery 

4. Country Clubs/ Golf Courses   

5. Police & Fire Stations  

6. Public& Governmental Services  
7. Public Libraries  
8. Public Parking Lots  

9. Temporary Uses  

Water and Sewer 
Service: 

Public water & sewer are not 
required. 

Public water and sewer are not required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Zoning District Summary (Existing/ Proposed): 

Lot Requirements 

Minimum Lot Area: 12,000 sq. ft.  Minimum Lot Areas Vary by Use:  

 Commercial Use: 5,000 sq.ft. 

 Single-Family: 7,500 sq.ft. 

 Two-family/Townhome: 7,500 sq.ft. 

 Multi-family: 3,000 sq.ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 75 ft. Minimum Lot Widths Vary by Use: 

 Commercial Use: N/A 

 Single-Family: 50 feet 

 Two-family/Townhome: 125 feet 

 Multi-family: 150 feet 

Maximum Lot Coverage(%): 30 Maximum Lot Coverage(%): 70 

Height Restrictions: Maximum Building Height: 35 ft. Maximum Building Height: 35 ft. 

Off-Street Parking 
Requirements: 

Minimum No. of Parking Space:  Minimum No. of Parking Space:  

Single-family dwelling: 2 space per 
dwelling  

Varies for different uses 

Setback 
Requirements: 

Front Yard Setback: 
25 feet from the right-of-way 

Front Yard Setback: 35 feet from the 
right-of-way 

Rear Yard Setback: 25 feet from 
the rear lot line 

Rear Yard Setback: 30 feet from the 
rear lot line 

Side Yard Setback: 10 feet from 
side lot lines  

Side Yard Setback: 10 feet from side 
lot lines 

 
Comprehensive Development Plan Consideration(s): 
The land use map indicates the preferable use of this property as Residential Medium-density.  

 
Planning Consideration(s): 
The following general factors, planning concepts, and other facts should be considered in the review 
of this application: 

1. The Zoning Ordinance defines the Neighborhood Commercial District (C-3); however, the 
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map have not yet been updated to identify areas for this 
mixed-use zoning district. 

2. The entire lot is proposed to be rezoned and is approximately 2 acres and is currently 
undeveloped, agricultural land with an existing creek flowing through a portion of the 
property, as shown on the illustration below. 



 

 

 

 
 

3. The lot has approximately 350 feet of frontage along Riley Creek Road and approximately 450 
feet of frontage on Ovoca Rd.   

4. The immediate area is characterized by subdivisions of single-family dwellings.  
5. The parcel meets all lot (minimum size and width) standards for residential development in the 

R-1 District.   
 

Preliminary Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends denial of the rezoning request for the following: 

1. The proposed commercial zoning requested is inconsistent with the adopted land use plan, 
which designates the area for low-density residential. 

2. A land use study is recommended should the Planning Commission desire to study the future 
land uses in this area of Tullahoma, in order to develop revisions to the Land Use Map that 
could indicated a need for revisions to the Tullahoma’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and 
Land Use Map. 

  
Attachments: 
Application  
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Land Use Map 
Letters received from Neighbors 

 
 





















Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA) #238 
Ovoca Road  
Zoning Map 



Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA) #238 
Ovoca Road  

Land Use Map 

    73 


